
BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 1 

CITY OF ENGLEWOOD

BOARD OF HEALTH REGULAR MEETING

December 5, 2007

1. The regular meeting of the Board of Health, City of Englewood, Bergen County, was called to
order at 8:05 p.m. by Lisa Levien, President, Board of Health.

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Lisa Levien, President; Dianna Lachman, Vice President; Curtis Caviness; Jerald Chambers; Dr. Lisa
Wisotsky (excused at 9:40 p.m.); Dr. Earl Marsan; and Dr. Blanche Skurnick (arrived at 8:55 p.m.)

ALSO PRESENT:

Richard A. Lustgarten, Esq., Board of Health Attorney; Nelson Xavier Cruz, Director, Health
Services/Secretary to the Board; Deborah Greene, Administrative Assistant/Office Manager/Registrar;
Janet Kast, Executive Secretary.

O.P.M.A. STATEMENT

Adequate notice of this meeting was given, in compliance with the Sunshine Law, and published in The
Record, The Press Journal, posted on the bulletin board at City Hall, and on the City’s web page, all at
least 48 hours prior to the date of this meeting. The Secretary of the Board has on file a copy of the
notice for appropriate retention.

2. Minutes of the October 3, 2007 Meeting

Motion to approve the minutes of the October 3, 2007 meeting was made by Ms. Lachman, and
seconded by Dr. Wisotsky. A roll call vote ensued:

Dr. Earl Marsan - “Abstain” Jerald Chambers - “Yes”
Dr. Lisa Wisotsky - “Abstain” Curtis Caviness - “No”
Dianna Lachman - “Yes” Lisa Levien - “Yes”

Motion was carried.

3-7. Receipts/Bills/Employee Reports/Communications/Digest of Mail

Mr. Cruz reported $12,240.25 in total cash receipts, and $16,392.52 in total expenses for the month of
October 2007. For the month of November 2007, the Department generated $10,976.25 in total cash
receipts, and total expenditures were $10,856.99.



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 2 

Activities and events for October and November 2007 included the Family Health Fair, the Flu Clinics,
hiring of a new Reach and Teach Youth Health Educator, new Department Newsletter in English and
Spanish, the preparation and submission of the NACCHO Adolescent Grant, Pandemic Flu Phase 2
Grant final reports, New Jersey Department of Health and Senior Services’ notification to the City of
Englewood of alleged non-compliance of the Englewood Health Department in the provision of Health
Officer services, the painting of the Englewood Health Department, and the receipt of the resignation of
Ms. Paula Madison Jenkins as Health Officer of the Englewood Health Department. Additional
information was provided in the Board Packets.

November activities included the completion and submission of the 2008 Department Budget,
preparation for the World AIDS Day event, the installation of a new server for the Department, the
pursuit of a Hepatitis B grant approval for $5,000, completion of the requested 2006 Annual Report, a
second Flu Clinic, establishment of a new Department Newsletter, revision of the departmental web
page, acceptance and attendance in the Public Health Leadership Initiative for Emergency Response
Fellows Program at UMDNJ School of Public Health (PHLIER), Pandemic Flu Plan, advertisement for
recruitment of a new Health Officer, and attendance at the Annual New Jersey State League of
Municipalities Conference. 

Mr. Cruz reported that  for October 2007, for Vital Statistics, there were 193 birth certificates, 50 death
certificates, and 30 marriage certificates filed, and a total of 571 front desk encounters. For Public Health
Nursing in October, a number of individuals were identified with hepatitis B and hepatitis C.  Also
National Lead Poisoning Awareness Month, the PHN’s conducted a campaign to educate the parents of 
CHC patients about the hazards and medical consequences of lead poisoning. New CHC applications in
October were 4, rescheduled appointments 2, failed letters sent 1, and 2 appointments cancelled upon NJ
FamilyCare enrollment. Fees charged were $120 for Mantoux tests, and $32 for CHC user fees. Blood
pressure screenings and health education were provided at DPW to 11 employees. 

Health Education in October was dedicated to meeting and reaching out to the community by the new
Health Educator. Work on the nutrition program at Janis E. Dismus Middle School, funded by the
County, has begun. More outreach was done at the schools, the high schools, and Englewood Hospital
and Medical Center with various volunteers.  

In communications for October, a memo was sent to Mr. Clyde Sweatt, Department of Public Works,
regarding abatement at 148 William St. That has now been resolved, with a copy of a letter from the
property owner in the November packets. 

There was also a letter from the State to the City, a notice of violation indicating Englewood didn’t have
a Health Officer, when in fact we did. Mr. Cruz indicated that the Health Officer subsequently  resigned,
and a letter of agreement was entered into with another local Health Department, but they decided to
back out of the agreement after they received some calls from the State. He stated that we are searching
for a new Health Officer. 

Dr. Wisotsky asked why they backed out of the agreement. Mr. Cruz said it was his understanding that
the Health Officer/Department were contacted by the State and questioned about why they were entering
into the agreement, and so they were not comfortable with serving as back up. 



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 3 

Mr. Chambers asked what was the position that put the Board in with the State, and if there was any
possibility of being funded without having a licensed Health Officer on board. Mr. Cruz stated that, after
speaking with Richard Matzer, the only funds at risk are Public Health Priority Funding, a total amount
of $9,000. One of Mr. Matzer’s questions was our state of compliance going back to January, which Mr.
Cruz questioned because there was a licensed Health Officer at the time, and the state of non-compliance 
began when Ms. Jenkins resigned. The Department has six months to rectify that issue, henceforth, from
the date of that resignation.

Mr. Caviness stated that, according to Mr. Matzer, the six month statutory grace period began when the
Health Officer Violet Cherry resigned in January 2006. During that period, the Board chose to hire a
Director and not a Health Officer, and were not in compliance with N.J.S.A. 26:3A2 after the six month
period. Therefore, according to Richard Matzer, we are inelegible for public health priority funding.  

Ms. Lachman asked if we had received the funding for the year 2007. Mr. Cruz confirmed that we had.
Mr. Caviness said priority health funding applications are due on December 31, and they have to be
signed by a Health Officer, which we do not have. He referred to the Agenda, and the submission of a
budget, and asked if that budget includes $9,000 of PHPF funding or not.

Mr. Lustgarten said he had written to Mr. Matzger (letter in packet) on April 19, 2007, and believed  he
was unaware that Mrs. Jenkins had a Health Officer’s license. There was no response to indicate that Mr.
Matzer disagreed with our position. Mr. Lustgarten acknowledged the letter of October 4, 2007, but
believed Mr. Caviness  was incorrect regarding the commencement of the six month period because
there was a Health Officer on board, regardless of her title. He stated that the regulations talk about six
months from when you no longer have a Health Officer working, a point Mr. Matzer has not followed up
with. He indicated that Mr. Cruz has had conversations with the State, and that they understand that we
are in the process of filling that position.

Mr. Chambers asked what correspondence was there with the State to try to rectify and clarify this
situation, and rather than verbal conversations, felt there should be something in writing, a  response
from the State, that they understand the situation.  Mr. Lustgarten responded that Mr. Robert Casey,
Interim City Manager, in a letter dated October 12, 2007, had responded to Mr. Matzer’s October 4,
2007 inquiry, and he reiterated the fact that Ms. Jenkins was on staff as a Health Officer, so there is
memorialization back and forth to the State and vice versa. We know we need to hire a full time Health
Officer, and the State is aware of the actions Mr. Cruz is taking, and what has transpired since Ms.
Cherry resigned. 

Mr. Caviness said that the issue was exactly as just stated. When Ms. Cherry resigned, we had previously
appointed Paula Jenkins as Acting Health Officer, which is not “the services of a full time Health Officer
that has a term of agreement not less than two years” as specified by statute. He said his understanding,
and the understanding that the State has, was that we did not appoint a full time Health Officer by
resolution of the Board for a minimum term of no less than two years, and therefore are not in
compliance with Title 26, and we are also operating in violation of Practice Standards. 

Mr. Caviness said that in the same letter it states that the Health Officer shall meet regularly with the
contracting municipality’s Board of Health; the Health Officer is to meet with this Board of Health; the
Health Officer is to direct the activities of public health officials in our department. That is not being



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 4 

done, and several items on the Agenda tonight are not being presented by a full time Health Officer that
should be. He again stated that he didn’t believe we are in compliance, and didn’t see how the Board
could continue to operate under those circumstances.

Mr. Lustgarten stated that there was a distinction between the terms “acting” and “full time”. An
“acting” person is a person who may have other qualifications and fulfills a title as was the case with Ms.
Jenkins as the Acting Director. The license certification as a health officer didn’t change regardless of
what the Englewood title was, and she was a full time City employee through the Board of Health with
that title. He said it was a major distinction between saying someone is acting in a title versus someone
being a full time employee, and didn’t believe the terms were interchangeable. However, he said it is
clear that at this point in time we need a Health Officer on staff at the Board of Health, and that is being
worked on. The matter of who is correct, as far as the time frame, or when the six months is from, won’t
be resolved tonight, but either way we have to move forward and take steps to get into compliance.

Mr. Chambers said that, according to this letter, we are in non-compliance and have been for a long
time. He wanted to make the point that the Board acted precipitously by hiring a Director without 
considering that a Health Officer should have been appointed/hired prior to that. In addition, the budget
will be increased dramatically by having these two positions, when it wasn’t necessary. He didn’t believe
the Board acted in the best interests of the City in handling the City’s finances.

Mr. Caviness commented on the Communications section of the Board Packet, and said he didn’t see
Paula Jenkins’ letter of resignation. Mr. Cruz said it was on file, and if he wished to review it, it would
be provided to him.  Mr. Chambers asked to have a copy of it provided now. Mr. Caviness asked Ms.
Levien if the letter was copied to the Board, why the Board didn’t have copies. Ms. Levien said she
would make it available for the next meeting, and Mr. Chambers responded that he would not be at the
next meeting, as he was about to resign, and wanted to see it today. Ms. Levien said it would be mailed
to him. Mr. Caviness added that it should include all of the attachments that came with it. 

Mr. Caviness referred to a Monthly Report which said that Ruthie Mae’s was inspected. He said it was
his understanding that there were three operations going on out of one kitchen, and asked if that was in
compliance with Chapter 24. Ms. Levien asked if it was his impression that they were not in compliance.
Mr. Caviness answered that he knew there were several different operations because he had been there,
but there was only one kitchen, and questioned if that was a legal operation. He asked if he did a Chapter 
24 for Sangria’s, does he give a separate inspection placard for Ruthie Mae’s?  Does the 201 Club get a
separate placard? Do they get a separate placard for an inspection of the same kitchen?

Mr. Cruz stated that there is an operation there with one sole owner of three businesses. He didn’t know
if there was only one kitchen, but believed there were several and not one kitchen shared by all three
businesses. Mr. Cruz asked Ms. Lewis to further comment on the issue.

Ms. Lewis stated that there was one kitchen in Sangria LLC. This had been discussed with Mr.
Lustgarten on several occasions, in regard to how the Department should handle the situation at Sangria
aka Ruthie Mae’s aka 201, and how to ensure that they comply. The Certificate of Occupancy has been
issued for Ruthie Mae’s, and according to Batan Inc. and Sangria LLC, all are running under one
umbrella parent company. Ms. Lewis said Mr. Lustgarten might be able to explain what that means. 



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 5 

Mr. Lustgarten stated two issues had been discussed. One was whether the operative facility was in
compliance with the zoning code. The second issue was the health issue. As he had discussed with Ms.
Lewis, her responsibility is strictly from a health standpoint; the zoning issues and multiple uses are not
within the jurisdiction of the Board of Health. Ms. Lewis stated that she had also spoken with Mr. Don
Porrino of the Code Enforcement Department, who thought separate C.O.’s might be required. 

Mr. Lustgarten said that we were satisfied that the other agencies, Code Enforcement specifically, were
satisfied that the surface appearance of multiple uses were coming out of the same premises, and that
those premises were in compliance with the City regulations. At that point, the City’s responsibility was
only to determine health issues. Mr. Chambers asked if all the other agencies believed they were in
compliance. Mr. Lustgarten and Ms. Lewis answered that they were in zoning compliance. 

Mr. Caviness commented on the attorney directing REHS’s to do Health Department inspections. Mr.
Lustgarten attempted to clarify that as having fulfilled his responsibility, as the Board Attorney, to assist
the staff on legal issues. He said the question was, if you have what appears to be multiple uses out of a
particular premise, what is our responsibility as the Board of Health? What are the other agencies’
responsibilities? He stated that he did not direct anyone. 

Mr. Lustgarten believed it would be confirmed that this was a collaborative effort within the jurisdiction
between Ms. Lewis and himself in his purview as the attorney to try and resolve an outstanding issue. He
commended her for raising the question, and said Mr. Caviness might put a negative spin on this, but he
was wrong. 

Mr. Caviness also commended Ms. Lewis, but thought this was indicative of the Board not having a
Health Officer on staff. Mr. Chambers said the issue of the Health Officer was not settled, and that it
needed to be taken seriously, and not act like it is all going to go away.  Ms. Levien said they were not,
and were advertising for a Health Officer. Mr. Chambers said there were two months to get clarification
from the State, since their letter of October 4. Ms. Levien said they had not answered. Mr. Chambers
responded that the State should be sent letters every day until we receive clarification on this. He also
said the impact on the budget, to be spending close to $200,000 on two positions for a Health
Department of this size, was ridiculous.

Ms. Levien asked for a Motion to approve items 3-7. Motion was made by Ms. Lachman, and seconded
by Dr. Wisotsky. A roll call vote ensued:

Dr. Earl Marsan - “Yes” Jerald Chambers - “No”
Dr. Lisa Wisotsky - “Yes” Curtis Caviness - “No”
Dianna Lachman - “Yes” Lisa Levien - “Yes”

Motion was carried.

OLD BUSINESS

8. Update - Flu Clinics

The Department held two Flu Clinics, one in October and one in November. At the last one, held at the



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 6 

Health Department, 129 vaccinations were administered, which included both flu and pneumonia. The
total for both sessions was 337. 

9. Update - 148 William St.

Mr. Cruz said he had already inquired about an update on 148 William Street, and that information was
in the board packet. Mr. Caviness said it should be made very clear that the Board acted prematurely
with a resolution to have this abated by the City and charge the owner, and that the Board should be
more prudent in these situations in the future. Ms. Levien said that the problem was abated. Mr.
Caviness said it was abated after four summonses were sent to the owners and he and his wife took off
from work to go to court for something that was proven not to be their problem. He said this is not a way
to run a Health Department, or deal with our residents. Ms. Levien  believed that everyone in the
Department had acted prudently in addressing the sewage in the street. When it is a Health Department
issue, she said it is incumbent upon the Department to point it out and to take whatever measures
necessary to get the City and the residents to comply. 

Mr. Lustgarten added that upon being advised by the Health Department that sewage was not coming
from the owner’s property, he immediately wrote a letter to Judge Dow requesting that the summonses
be dismissed without cause so it would not be hanging over the resident’s head, and so wanted the public
to be aware that it was done on an expeditious basis. He also advised the court by letter on October 25,
that the sewage was either coming from an unknown source or certainly a source other than the
resident’s property. He believed the tickets had been dismissed, and a copy of that letter was sent to the
residents so that they would know that we were not proceeding with the summonses. 

Mr. Chambers concurred with Mr. Caviness that, in the future, the Board should  be very careful not to
get in a position to be sued. He said it should do what is necessary to get the City to act, but felt there
were ways without trying to put all the responsibility on the property owners. 

Mr. Cruz stated that this was a collaborative approach by the Health Department, Engineering, and
DPW, and they made the initial assessment on the problem. Our response was based on the public health
of the residents of the City of Englewood.  Mr. Cruz said that the Health Department did not make the
determination on whose responsibility it was. Mr. Chambers asked if the City had the authority to issue
summonses, instead of the Board of Health. Mr. Cruz confirmed, but said that for the raw sewage, the
Health Department has the responsibility to correct that problem, and it did. Mr. Chambers asked if it
was the City’s problem, and the Department identified that it was a problem, could the Department issue
a summons to the City? Mr. Cruz answered that this had been looked at as a public health issue, and the
response was only to that matter. 

Mr. Chambers said the response was sent to the suspected source, and that turned out to be wrong.  

Mr. Lustgarten added for verification, that Mr. Cruz and Ms. Lewis’s letter of October 18 to the
residents was just three days after the summonses were issued. On October 25, ten days after the
summonses, they were rescinded. He said he agreed with what everybody had said, one of which is 
address these issues with prudence, but there are competing issues here. One is the immediate health
issue, and the other is to try and identify the source. 



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 7 

Mr. Caviness asked what the immediate health issue was with sewage being discharged in the middle of
the street. Mr. Lustgarten said he was not a health expert, but he could tell you that is what the staff
indicated, and they would not have issued a summons unless, in their judgement, they had made that
determination. He said once it was determined that the sewage was not coming from the homeowner’s
property, what we could not do was leave them in limbo. That didn’t happen. There was a time frame
where they had the stress of having received 3-4 summonses, but in terms of the totality of the
circumstances, on a chronological basis, the Board of Health acted on what it believed to be an
immediate health urgency and took the proper steps. Upon learning additional facts, it took additional
steps to ameliorate the situation.  If you err on the side of caution and defer a little, and in fact the
sewage is coming from that premises, you have lost critical time to resolve the problem.

Mr. Caviness said there are certain issues here, such as receiving a complaint and talking about a
collaborative effort with the City Engineer, who says he is unable to track the source of the problem, but
going ahead with summonses to a person because sewage was coming up in the middle of a city street in
front of his house. Mr. Caviness called that a quantum leap to say that the resident was responsible for
the leak. He also said, from a Public Health position, there are dogs, birds, and Canadian geese that
defecate in the streets, and the number one public health problem in the county is Canadian geese, not
having raw sewage in the middle of the street.

Mr. Cruz stated that the Engineering Department did make a determination that the source was from 148
William St. at that time. Mr. Caviness said that was not in the documents given to them. He said when
he voted no on the resolution, he made specific reference to that point, that the Engineer was unable to
determine the source of the problem. Mr. Cruz said he had informed the Department otherwise. Mr.
Lustgarten referred to the letter of October 5, 2007, from the resident, which read “your DPW
Supervisor, C. Sweatt, claimed that the leak appears to be coming from my lateral that connects my
house to the City line.” He said that ultimately turned out to be incorrect, but it was a judgement that was
made from the beginning, not with no one making a preliminary determination as to the source. That
preliminary determination in retrospect was incorrect, but it was a judgement call made by the DPW
Supervisor, and it was that information which was the basis for everyone else to act. Mr. Caviness stated
that the leak was not coming from the lateral; it was coming out of the middle of the street and flowing
down to the curb area.
  
10. PEOSH Indoor Air Quality Reassessment

Mr. Cruz reported on the PEOSH Indoor Air Quality Reassessment. An assessment was done on indoor
air quality in this particular building about one year ago, including the Health Department, Police, and
Municipal Court, and the air quality was found to be unfavorable. Some of the recommendations were
implemented, but not all. One of those included retrofitting the windows to allow for their opening.
Because the recommendations were not completed, an air quality reassessment was done. A report will
be issued at the end of the month, and it will be distributed to various directors, including Health, Police,
DPW, and Engineering, but the findings were no different than the initial assessment. 

Mr. Cruz said he plans to submit a capital request, which he has been given permission to do on behalf
of the Municipal Court, Health Department, and Police, to replace the windows as a potential resolution
of the air quality problem. Another issue is the ventilation system, which needs to be looked at closely,
and has been an on-going problem for quite some time. Mr. Cruz stated that the problem is magnified



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 8 

due to the close proximity to the railroad tracks, with a diesel-powered train idling on a regular basis,
which is not only highly toxic but also a carcinogen. Some of the things found were the air conditioning
problems, with water collecting in large containers, which is a breeding ground for legionnaires disease.
They also found mold on the second level. Mr. Cruz said that once he receives the follow-up report, he
will meet with Ms. Pinckney from the County, the same person who did the initial assessment. She will
provide an overview and make some recommendations based on that report, and the various departments
will have to develop strategies for addressing the problem.  

11. Pandemic Flu Plan 

Mr. Cruz stated that, at the last Board of Health meeting, a request was made by the Board to obtain a
copy of the Pandemic Flu Plan. A consultant was hired by the County Public Health Partnership to
initiate and complete the project, including a specific Pandemic Flu Plan for the City of Englewood. Mr.
Caviness asked if there was a specific City of Englewood plan. Mr. Cruz answered that it was a plan
similar to all the participants and municipalities, but based on the needs and concerns of the community
and municipality.

(Dr. Blanche Skurnick arrived at 8:55 p.m. with apologies.)

NEW BUSINESS

(Mr. Cruz requested that #24. Massage Therapy Licensing Application Status be moved up on the
agenda.  His request was granted.)

24. Massage Therapy Licensing Application Status

Mr. Cruz stated that the Health Department has several groups who have applied for a massage therapy
license, and the Board was being asked to consider if this Ordinance should be repealed or reviewed for
revision. There is a process in place at the State level (Department of Consumer Affairs), where they are 
issued certification, and are fingerprinted, which takes from 3-9 months. Our ordinance requires that
when they apply, they have to go through the same process again, which is a duplication of effort.
Currently, they are inspected once a year, but there are several licenses still pending, and others who are
paying fees and waiting. At this juncture, Mr. Cruz deferred to Ms. Lewis, who has been very involved
in that issue.

Ms. Lewis stated that, right now, she had about 14 applications. Some are complete, and some are not
due to pending background checks and other needed information. Ms. Lewis asked if we should go
through the application process and background checks when this is done through the Department of
Consumer Affairs and the Board of Nursing, who issues these certifications. The applicants could show
us a copy of the certification, and we could have them apply for a license for a salon or spa, but not have
to go through the entire application process as it is now. If they are going to wait, they would be better
off to wait with the State, and get the State certificate, as opposed to our license. Several people have
already applied with us, and they are still waiting, and some are at the point of paying for their license,
which will be another $500 after they have already paid the $100 or $25 application fee. As far as
inspections, it only takes a few minutes to check for cleanliness, hot water, etc. Ms. Lewis said when the
initial ordinance was passed, she believed it was for reasons other than public health (due to some illicit



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 9 

activity) and the entire process was not considered thoroughly. Ms. Lewis had documentation for the
Board to review, and asked for feedback.

Mr. Lustgarten said he believed that the State Statute was amended or upgraded in 2004, and then a State
Administrative Code Regulation was issued, and the City of Englewood ordinance was adopted in 2005.
In a staff discussion, the question presented to them, which he thought the Board should consider, is if
there is a compelling reason for Englewood to have a parallel licensing process, or is there a compelling
reason not to have the Health Department staff be involved. Our ordinance effectively parallels what the
State does now, since the 2004 State Statute was upgraded and the administrative regulations are now
part of the State Administrative Code.  The biggest obstacle has nothing to do with the Board or
Department. It is the fingerprints, which are required both by the State Administrative Code and our
local code, which takes a tremendous amount of time, and puts pressure on the Department of Health.
He felt the focus for the Board to consider was, do we gain or lose something by having the State do it,
or do we gain something by having Englewood do it, versus having parallel forces. 

Mr. Chambers said it seemed to be a duplication of effort, and that the State would supercede what we
do anyway. He thought common sense would say leave it to the State, and have the persons bring the
certificate to us. Ms. Levien asked Ms. Lewis and Mr. Cruz to list the pro’s and con’s of processing them
here versus the State. Mr. Cruz answered that by doing it here, it is a duplication of effort, as Mr.
Chambers mentioned. In addition, it is also a matter for the Police Department to ensure public safety. If
the ordinance were revised and we allowed the State to conduct the checks they are already doing, the
process would be once the individual has applied for and has been approved for the certificate, they
would present that certificate and apply for a C.O. to establish a business in the City of Englewood, to be
approved by the various departments. Once approved and issued a C.O., it would be inspected on a
regular basis, just like any other establishment in town.

Ms. Levien asked Ms. Lewis if any control would be given up if licensing was done by the State. Ms.
Lewis answered that we could still do the inspections for sanitary conditions on a regular basis and
follow up on complaints, but any complaint related to illicit activity would be referred to the Police
Department. Health Department involvement is why the case of the Grand Avenue establishment is
being delayed, and taking so long. That is not our role. Mr. Caviness said  his recollection, since he had
been on the Board, was that only one person had complained about massage parlors, and based on that,
an ordinance was passed that generated all this extra work. He said that ordinances and Board actions
should be based on solid, scientific evidence. He said he had asked then, and was asking again, how
many health complaints were received about massage parlors, and if there was one or zero, why did they
even pass the ordinance.
 
Dr. Skurnick commented that there were other health issues that were under consideration, such as the
transmission of herpes from someone not wearing gloves or who didn’t wash their hands. A number of
infections can be transmitted skin-to-skin, and one of them is herpes, which was one of Dr. Skurnick’s 
concerns, and one reason why the Board had some issues to address for the ordinance, not just a singular
complaint. She said that Englewood has a history, not that long ago, of a quasi-parlor, closed for illicit
activity, so there was some background on this question.

Mr. Chambers said that illicit activity has nothing to do with the Health Department, and that the Board
tries to take on too many activities, zoning, etc., instead of functioning strictly as a Health Board. He



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 10 

asked if the State didn’t consider herpes transmission in their certification process, and if we were the
only local health department in the State that was aware that herpes may be transmitted. 

Dr. Skurnick didn’t know that we were, or that it was absent from the State’s considerations in
certification. She did not think that the State oversight agency would be unaware of this, but reiterated
that it matters. 

Mr. Chambers agreed that it matters, but asked why we need to duplicate what the State is doing.  He
said it was just a matter of common sense, and not adding more responsibility on our employees, and 
asked if there were any “cons” to allowing the State to do the certification. 

Ms. Lewis again said she didn’t see any problems with this, since there is a board with qualified medical
personnel who are trained to review these applications, and they would issue the certificate. Dr.
Wisotsky didn’t think anyone was arguing against letting the State do it. 

Ms. Levien asked if there was a component of the operator’s license in the State regulations for massage
parlors, as well as the opening of the premises.  

Mr. Lustgarten stated that the material from the Attorney General of the State of New Jersey, Division of
Consumer Affairs, New Jersey Board of Nursing says an applicant for an initial certification has to
indicate in a statement if they have worked full time for the past two years or part time for the past five
years; a full time practice means the applicant provided a minimum of 750 hours of massage, bodywork
and somatic therapy during a year, part time a minimum of 300 hours, and evidence that the applicant
has completed 200 hours of education or training in massage, bodywork, and somatic therapy. When
someone makes an application at the State for certification, there is the initial certification by education
or proof that the applicant has successfully passed the written examination offered by the N.C.B.T.M.B.
or the N.C.C.A.O.M. by providing a copy of a certificate from one of these organizations in accordance
with N.J.A.C. 13:37-16.4(a)2. In order to be eligible to obtain certification from the State, educational
credits or experience credit of two years is required.  

Since our certification is not more extensive than the State’s, Mr. Chambers thought this issue had been
blown out of proportion because it had concentrated on the illegal activities, or perceived illegal
activities that are not under our jurisdiction. He felt the State should do the certification, bring their
certification in for the file, and let the Police oversee the public safety of the massage parlors. Mr.
Lustgarten stated that the Board ordinance requires all that, incorporating by reference what the State has
been requiring. 

Ms. Levien asked if the Board should repeal this ordinance or if the Board needed to replace it. Mr.
Lustgarten replied that action on an ordinance would have to be done next year. It has to be introduced, 
publicized, published, and then a public hearing has to be held on the ordinance. It is the decision of the
Board whether  to repeal or substitute it. Mr. Chambers thought the Board should  repeal the ordinance,
and that whatever efforts were needed for repeal should be done expeditiously, because it has only made
a duplication of effort. 

Ms. Levien asked for a consensus of the Board regarding a repeal of the Massage Parlor Ordinance. 
Motion was made by Ms. Lachman and seconded by Dr. Skurnick. A roll call vote ensued:



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 11 

Dr. Blanche Skurnick - “Yes” Dr. Earl Marsan - (out of room)
Jerald Chambers - “Yes” Dr. Lisa Wisotsky - “Yes”
Curtis Caviness - “Yes” Dianna  Lachman - “Yes”
Lisa Levien - “Yes”

Motion was carried.

Based on the Board’s consensus, Mr. Lustgarten will prepare an ordinance of repeal for the January 2008
meeting, with a second reading scheduled for the February meeting.

12. Hepatitis B Vaccine Grant Award

Mr. Cruz reported that the Health Department, on behalf of the City, was notified on November 9 of a
grant award in the amount of $5,000 for Hepatitis B vaccines for emergency response personnel,
including Police, Fire, DPW, and  EVAC. One criteria from the State is that they can not have insurance,
or have insurance that does not cover those vaccinations, so the only individuals who qualify, and would
not otherwise get the Hepatitis B vaccine, are EVAC personnel.  EVAC will pay for the vaccines and be
reimbursed.

13. 2006 Annual Report

The draft of the 2006 Annual Report was in response to a request at the October 2007 meeting of the
Board.  Ms. Levien remarked that there was no statement from the 2006 President of the Board of
Health, and  asked if this had been requested. Mr. Cruz said numerous attempts had been made to obtain
a message from the former Board President, but she has not responded. Ms. Levien asked that a certified
letter be sent to her.  

Ms. Paula Jenkins stated that her name was used on the Message from the Acting Director and said she 
did not agree to put her name on it. Mr. Cruz said the message, and the information there, was only
edited, and the content was essentially the same. Ms. Jenkins said she would have liked to have seen it
and approved it if it was going to have her name. 

Ms. Levien asked if any other statements needed to be discussed. Mr. Chambers asked if they could
discuss the Friends and their participation. Mr. Cruz said there was a message from the President of the
Friends included, and he believed they were present and available last year. Ms. Jenkins said the Friends
were not an active part of the Health Department since the suspension of the Director, and were not
supportive of the Department. There was discussion regarding the Report being a draft, and the need for
further editing. With regard to the Message from the Friends, Ms. Levien stated that historically there
has always been such a message in the Annual Report, and that she believed in the participation of the
Friends, because it is a group that says Friends of the Englewood Health Department. 

Mr. Chambers stated that, historically, every organization that has Friends in it is not operating as
friends, such as Friends of the American Revolution.  He said he would like to know the role of the
Friends, what type of organization they are, (501C3, non-profit), how they are organized, and what they
are supposed to do in terms of assisting the Health Department. He said since Dr. Pierson was here,
maybe he could inform the Board what type of organizational structure they have, or what their role is. 



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 12 

Dr. Wisotsky said that part of the Friends’ message is somewhat political. She thought that at another
time, the Board should discuss the role of the Friends, but didn’t feel the first two paragraphs or the last
paragraph were appropriate for the Annual Report. Mr. Chambers absolutely agreed, and said it needed
to be removed, and commended Dr. Wisotsky for making that statement. Dr. Wisotsky said that, for this
year, they could take out page 2, and  revisit the issue at another time. 

Dr. Skurnick viewed it as a historical document that represented an opinion. Mr. Chambers said it was a
political opinion. Dr. Skurnick said she thought that all of the issues of the year that the report
represented were political, and they were difficult, and everyone was uncomfortable with them. Mr.
Chambers then said that one organization should not be the only one able to state its opinion, and if it is
allowed, then others need to present their political viewpoint as well. 

Dr. Wisotsky asked what the Friends did for the Health Department in 2006.  Ms. Jenkins asked to
comment. Ms. Levien asked her to make her comments in the Public Session. 

Mr. Chambers said they hadn’t determined what to do with the statement from the Friends. Dr. Wisotsky
felt the statement didn’t belong in the annual report, saying there is a time and a place for everything, but
that this wasn’t the forum. Dr. Skurnick said this was a draft document, and the purpose was to criticize
and to change and to add as needed. Ms. Levien asked if they agreed to send it back for further editing.
Ms. Greene disagreed with issuing a 2006 report at this late date. Dr. Skurnick strongly supported a
history of events of every year, as they have always had, and said the City is entitled to a documentation.
Mr. Chambers stated that it should then include the Hearing Officer’s report with documentation about
the former Health Director also, and the obstruction of justice, and how this new Board dealt with the
hearing. Ms. Levien said this report really should be based on health issues addressed that year. Mr.
Chambers said the Friends’ statement should be removed then. The subject was tabled, to be discussed at
the next meeting. 

14. 2008 Budget

Mr. Cruz stated that the 2008 Budget was prepared and submitted to the office of the Interim City
Manager, with a copy for the Board. A tentative date has been scheduled for the Department of Health to
discuss it with the City Manager on December 20, 2007. In the budget, there is a comparison of revenues
to the previous year, which have been stable. Enforcement actions show an increase in 2007. In records
and licenses there was an increase as well, and other data could be provided upon request. Mr. Cruz
stated that the budget process for this year was different from previous years. On the actual budget,
Salaries and Wages and Other Expenses for 2007 were $911,777. The total budget for 2008, based on
the recommendations of the City Manager is $835,592, a percentage change of -8.36%. Broken down, 
salaries and wages, for 2007 were $791,477 to a 2008 total of $728,842, which is a reduction or percent
change of -7.91%. Other expenses for 2007 were $120,300, and for 2008 are $106,750, a reduction of    
-11.26%. The other pages that follow give a specific breakdown of salaries and wages, impacted by the
potential raises for two years. The next page deals with Other Expenses and gives a breakdown of the
various equipment and supplies. 

Finally, there are two major capital requests. The first one is for Vital Statistics security to comply with
new regulations passed by the Feds about a year ago, to insure the privacy and confidentiality of Vital
Statistics, including a physical enclosure for that area. In addition, the staff of Vital Statistics will now



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 13 

have to go through a Federal background check. It also means that any copiers, faxes, or equipment are
for their use only, and if they require maintenance or repair, the individuals or vendors must also go
through a Federal background check. The total amount requested for that is $25,000. 

The second capital request is being submitted for all the City departments for an electronic document
management system. About a year and a half ago, that was proposed by the Health Department,
estimated at about $30,000. This time, it is being proposed not on behalf of the Health Department, but
as a City project, because the other City departments would certainly benefit from this new technology.
It would pool resources, reduce overall costs, and put it on to one shared system. 

Not included is a third capital request based on the Indoor Air Quality reassessment. This will be
submitted to include the replacement of the windows in this complex upon receipt of the estimates. Mr.
Cruz asked if there were any questions on the budget. 

Mr. Caviness asked if the preparer of the budget of the Health Department, was in line (compliance)
with the Local Health Services Act? Mr. Cruz said he believed it was. Mr. Caviness submitted the
question to the Board President and Board Attorney. Mr. Lustgarten said he would have to research that. 

Mr. Caviness had a second concern about the budget. He said two positions take up almost 25% of the
entire budget, the Director and the Health Officer. He thought that was out of line and should be
reviewed for better use of resources. Mr. Cruz answered that, in reviewing previous budgets, the former
Director combined the salary with the Health Officer, as well as the Program Assistant, and the
combined salaries were quite similar. He asked Mr. Caviness if he had voiced the same sentiments then. 

Mr. Caviness said he had, and that he was against it then, now, and probably always would be. He said
Englewood did not need a Director. There are only three Directors in the State, and the other ones are in
places with over 100,000 people, where the issues are different. He said Title 26 does not deal with a
Director; it deals with a Health Officer. As a statutory Board, we follow State law, which says Health
Officer. 

Dr. Skurnick disagreed with Mr. Caviness because she thought the services we offer needed a Director to
coordinate and initiate the activities, and to get grants. She said that we offer a tremendous number of
services in Englewood, many of which are directed toward young people, not only innocent children, but
also adolescents, who are neglected in many cities, and they are our future. She said it has always been a
focus of this Department to get money for that segment of the population, as is mandated in the ten rules
for a Department of Health. As can be seen in the many productions that have gone on in the Reach and
Teach Program and programs to have adolescents test the selling of cigarettes, we have always done
things like that, and this budget supports the various activities in this Department. She said that to write
such grants requires someone who knows a great deal about those activities, and that is a Director, and
that it is quite legitimate in a city of 25,000 diverse people, with diverse agendas, in a highly politicized
town. She was in favor of having a Director to coordinate these programs and to initiate new ones, to get
funding for new programs, to think about things like windows, and to put in order for the Board’s 
review the things that this Department can do.

Mr. Cruz stated that when he spoke to Mr. Matzer, he found it acceptable to have a Director function as 
Chief Executive Officer, and the Health Officer serve under that person. He said the definition currently 



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 14 

in place under Practice Standards, that Mr. Caviness referred to from time to time, is open to
interpretation. Mr. Cruz had specifically asked Mr. Matzer if it was permissible, and he stated it was, and
they have had several examples throughout the State where that particular model exists.

Mr. Chambers said that the model exists, but the question is, is it necessary for a municipality the size of
Englewood, with 25,000 people. He said if you look at the economics, in the past, there was one person
who served in both capacities. He stated that the Board acted negligently by hiring someone who did not
have the certification or qualifications of Health Officer, and that was why it was in the current quandary 
of being out of compliance with the State. Looking at the funding for the two titles, for a town of this
size, he did not agree with Dr. Skurnick, that there was a need to have two individuals with two separate
titles to run a Health Department of this size.

Ms. Levien stated that she was very much in agreement with Dr. Skurnick’s position. She asked Mr.
Cruz to give the Board some perspective on how many new services we plan to provide next year.

Mr. Cruz stated that we are looking to expand some of the existing services, and have received approval
for the adolescent grant, nutrition education program as well. Other avenues are being explored as well,
such as expanding the childhood obesity project, which currently exists as a pilot project in cooperation
with Englewood Hospital and Medical Center, as well as St. Luke’s Roosevelt Medical Center. Mr. Cruz
asked to defer to Dr. Pierson, but there were some protests that he should also wait for the Public
Session to speak. Dr. Pierson’s comments were held for Public Session. 

Dr. Wisotsky excused herself at this time. (9:40 p.m.)

Mr. Caviness asked for clarification regarding a statement that some things had been left for
interpretation under Practice Standards. He wanted to state that it says that “the agency’s Health Officer
shall be a full time Health Officer.” It says “the Health Officer shall administer.” Ms. Levien said
because it was 9:40 p.m. and he was repeating things, she asked to move on. Mr. Caviness said he was
making a point–that when it says “shall”, it is not left to interpretation.  “Shall” means you do. 

Mr. Chambers told Ms. Levien that the Chair could not control how Board members respond. Ms.
Levien said she was not trying to control the statements, but the pace of the meeting, because it was very
late, and everyone gives their time on a volunteer basis. Mr. Caviness agreed on that, and said that some
of the agenda items could be consolidated, and were redundant. 

15. World AIDS Day 2007

World AIDS Day was held on December 1, 2007 at Dwight Morrow High School, Dizzy Gillespie
Auditorium.

16. Revamped Department Newsletter (English and Spanish)

The Board received copies of the new newsletter in English and Spanish in their packets. It is published
on a bi-monthly basis.

17. Redesigned Department Web Page



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 15 

Mr. Cruz told the Board that he had provided a copy of the new web page design and the previous one.
The new one is easier to navigate, more user-friendly, with various links to different health topics.

18. Department’s New File Server

Due to limited capacity for the MILS and MACS License systems, and in order to maintain an accurate
data base, the Department acquired a new server. The new server would allow us the opportunity to
expand the information we collect as well as share calendars and provide internal e-mail. That system is
already implemented.

19. Painting of Department

Painting started at the beginning of November and is about 45% complete. These colors were chosen by
the Department staff, and it is expected to be finished by the middle of January 2008. This work is being
done by DPW.

20. Annual League of Municipalities Conference, Atlantic City, November 13-15, 2007

The League of Municipalities Conference is held every year. This year it was from November 13-15. The
Directors of various departments throughout the city attended. Mr. Cruz had the opportunity to attend
several sessions of the New Jersey Health Officers Association, where they discussed new programs for
seniors, as well as utilizing “green” communities. New Jersey municipalities have taken a leadership role
in creating green and sustainable communities. The past few years have seen exponential growth in
interest and activity at the local level in dealing with issues such as global warming, resource and water
conservation, alternative energy, green master planning, downtown redevelopment, developing
sustainability indicators and building walkable communities. It was highly recommended that a member
of the Englewood Board of Health serve on the local planning board to use municipal planning to
promote community health. 

21. Pediatric Obesity Project

Mr. Cruz noted that a copy of the meeting minutes and slide presentation of the Pediatric Obesity Project
was in the Board Packets for their information.

22. Tuition Reimbursement Request for Director

Mr. Cruz stated that, as the Board knew, when he was hired, there was a proviso in his contract that he
obtain a Health Officer’s license. In order to do that, there were a number of public health courses that
he needed to take, including environmental health and epidemiology, which he is currently enrolled in
and will be completing soon. He included a copy of the receipt for the courses paid, and a copy had been
sent to the City.  As a result, a tuition reimbursement request is submitted for review and approval by the
Board.

Mr. Caviness said that his reading of the contract was that Mr. Cruz was to obtain a Health Officer’s
license in six months, and asked if there was a copy of the contract at the meeting. He said there was a
difference in obtaining and preparing to obtain. His second comment was that when he began his



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 16 

position, he did not have a license, and he had to take the course; but because he was being paid in that
position, he paid for the course, and was not reimbursed by the employer for it. 

Dr. Skurnick stated that, as someone who had served on the committee to select a Director, she believed
that they found the qualifications of Mr. Cruz extremely well fitted to the needs of the community and to
the Department of Health. She said it was well worth the expenditure of the education cost for his
preparation for Health Officer. The committee felt that this was a minor issue, and that it would be
addressed by Mr. Cruz, and it is. She said she was very pleased, and knows that the rest of the committee 
is pleased, that he took this position, and that he is acquiring what was asked of him in a timely fashion. 

Mr. Caviness asked if the contract did not state that he was to acquire a Health Officer’s license in six
months. Dr. Skurnick answered that she did not have a copy. Mr. Caviness asked if she was on the
committee that put it together. Dr. Skurnick said she was, but that she didn’t have the contract in front of
her. She said the spirit of what the committee did was to hire who they considered the best qualified to
meet the tasks of the Director of this Department. That particular limitation, or qualification, deserved
the time and the initiative of Mr. Cruz to meet, and they were fully willing so long as he was willing to
do it in a timely fashion.  

Mr. Caviness stated that never in the past had the Board paid for tuition. Dr. Skurnick said she believed
that they had voted on tuition grants of a kind. Mr. Caviness said that was based on your achievement
and is totally different from tuition reimbursement. Dr. Skurnick said there was no reason why the
stipulation should be the same for the Director, and that they were well aware of this issue when they
hired Mr. Cruz, and had full well wanted Mr. Cruz to direct this Department because of the
qualifications he already had. She said that they were willing to expend the time and the money for him
to meet this particular criteria. 

Mr. Caviness said that under this situation, which he was not in agreement with, it would be in line,
because if he gets his Health Officer license, and probably takes over the Health Officer position, that is
a $71,000 increase. Therefore, to pay for getting the license, and then give a lump sum, the taxpayers’
money isn’t being used properly in that situation. 

Mr. Chambers asked what the State and Employee Policy Manual said, and said we still had laws and
regulations that govern us. Dr. Skurnick said they had a contract there. Mr. Chambers said a contract
does not supercede an Employee Manual Policy. Ms. Levien asked Mr. Lustgarten to address that issue.
Mr. Lustgarten said he did not have Mr. Cruz’s contract in front of him, but his recollection was that the
contract was not in contradiction with the personnel manual. He said he did remember specifically that
one of the paragraphs incorporated all of the personnel manual paragraphs. The contract would be
subject to all of the policies as stated in the personnel manual. Mr. Caviness asked if the question of
tuition reimbursement was in the personnel manual. Mr. Lustgarten said he didn’t have that information
with him. Mr. Caviness said there was an employee there who might be able to inform them on that.

Ms. Greene said that according to the Personnel Procedures Manual, there was a lump sum bonus
educational award, but there is no tuition reimbursement. Dr. Skurnick said that the Director has a
character quite different from the character of the rest of this staff, and he is the Director of the
Department. Mr. Chambers said the Director still has to answer to the Board, and that there were certain
rules and regulations that he has to answer to, just like the Board has to answer to. If there is nothing in



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 17 

the Personnel Manual about tuition reimbursement, why should we be reimbursing him? If he gets the
certification, then his salary will be adjusted. 

Mr. Cruz said that when he was hired, he was given a copy of the Personnel Manual by the Personnel
Department. There was a paragraph saying that the City provides tuition reimbursement, with the
stipulation that the budget could support it.  Ms. Levien reminded the Board that they had voted on and
approved the hiring of Mr. Cruz. However, she thought that the discussion was bordering on issues for 
Closed Session, and suggested they move on and table this issue until January. Mr. Chambers requested
a copy of Mr. Cruz’s contract. Mr. Caviness said he could provide one. 

23. Meeting between the Board of Health/Dept. of Health and Local 108

Mr. Cruz stated that a meeting with the union was scheduled for November 8, 2007 after various
requests were made by the union to meet with us. Unfortunately, the union, unbeknownst to us, decided
not to attend. In addition, they also suggested, or wrote, saying that we were in contempt, that we were 
trying to control the agenda, when it was their request, and we had tried to provide a time mutually
convenient for all to attend. Mr. Lustgarten, as the Board Attorney, responded to PERC. 

Mr. Lustgarten said that they had met in this room and waited about 45 minutes, and their attorney did
not call his office to say they were not coming, and he didn’t think it was inadvertent. He thought they
deliberately did not show, not the employees, just the representative. On December 19, 2007 he has a
meeting at 1:30, with PERC and Ms. Oxfeld, the attorney for Local 108, on the unfair labor charge they
filed. He does not think there is any merit to the charge. It is a status conference only with the attorneys
and the hearing officer and the mediation officer, and he will report back on that. 

Mr. Chambers asked Mr. Lustgarten why he thought there was no merit to the charge. Mr. Lustgarten
answered, based on the fact that they had documentation indicating that we were attempting to set up
meetings, that we in fact had circulated several days, that we had multiple phone calls back and forth,
and the irony is, that the unfair labor practice was filed by their attorney when she went on vacation. It
had been dictated before she went away. But we had a meeting set up to negotiate prior to the filing of
that unfair labor practice charge. So he doesn’t think there is any merit to it because, in fact, not only did
we attempt to set up a mutually convenient date, we did not attempt to control the agenda. In fact, we
showed up for the meeting, and they didn’t show. In fact, Mr. Lustgarten said he was thinking of
reversing the process, but he would rather get to the deep substance of negotiations.

25. Revised Job Descriptions

Six revised job descriptions were presented for review and approval. They are for the Director of Health
Services, Health Officer, Senior Executive Secretary, Executive Secretary, Health Educator, and Reach
& Teach Youth Health Educator. 

26. NJDHSS Letter to Englewood re: Health Officer

Previously discussed.

27. Resignation of Health Officer/Health Officer coverage/recruitment



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 18 

Previously discussed.

28. Resolution - Appointment of Reach & Teach Youth Health Educator

Mr. Cruz stated that this Resolution was before the Board to appoint the newly hired Reach & Teach
Youth Health Educator, Olga J. Palacios. With the Board’s approval, she would start on December 17,
2007. Mr. Cruz read Resolution #07-11, as follows: 

Be it resolved, by the Board of Health of the City of Englewood, that Olga J. Palacios is hereby
appointed to the position of Community Youth Health Educator for the Reach & Teach Program,
effective as of December 17, 2007, at an annual salary of $33,000. (Thirty-three Thousand Dollars) per
annum, for the Department of Health of the City of Englewood. Resolution taken and approved at a
regular meeting of the Board of Health on December 5, 2007. 

Mr. Lustgarten asked for a Motion to approve Resolution 07-11.  Motion was made by Dr. Skurnick and
seconded by Ms. Lachman. 

Mr. Caviness stated that this was the same old discussion. This was a health position, and according to
Practice Standards, it should be put forth by a Health Officer, and we are out of compliance. 

Ms. Levien asked if there was any discussion on the merits. 

Dr. Skurnick thought the proposed employee had good experience and is acquiring a very good
education. She has volunteered in services that are related to children and to psychology and
anthropology. Her qualifications, in terms of her volunteer experience, as well as in terms of her
education, are very good for this position. She seems to have directed her career efforts toward a position
of this kind, and Dr. Skurnick was very happy to see a resume like that, and felt this was a good hire. She
added that Ms. Palacios is also bilingual in English and Spanish, which she thinks is a very useful
attribute in this diverse community. 

Mr. Chambers asked if any other resumes had been submitted for that position. Mr. Cruz replied that
there were ten or eleven. Of all the candidates, she was the second best. One other candidate was a better
fit, but the offer had to be rescinded based on the pre-employment checks. Mr. Chambers stated that Ms.
Palacios’s resume said that she is presently working at Appleby’s Restaurant as a server and
expo/trainer. He asked if she has all this extensive background, why she wasn’t in another position
similar to this, that is preparing her to be more qualified. He felt she should be in a similar position now,
not transitioning from a server in a restaurant to this position. 

Dr. Skurnick asked if he had ever heard of financial difficulties. She asked what do many college
students do, what kind of work people do who are trying to get an education. Mr. Chambers said they
work in their field, something relevant. There was general discussion of the fact that she has been
working in a restaurant the last few years. Mr. Chambers said he worked at a job in his field while he
was getting his degree. 

A roll call vote ensued:



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 19 

Dr. Blanche Skurnick - “Yes” Dr. Earl Marsan - “Yes”
Jerald Chambers - “No” Dr. Lisa Wisotsky - (left early)
Curtis Caviness - “No” Dianna Lachman - “Yes”
Lisa Levien - “Yes”

Motion was carried.

Mr. Caviness said he had a question on No. 25, the job descriptions they had been presented with, and
they didn’t vote on them. He asked if they were just there for their edification. Ms. Levien said they were
there for review before the next Board Meeting. Mr. Caviness said he would not be there for the next
meeting, and it seemed to him that they had switched the Director of Health Services as CEO. He said he
was going to be redundant again, and referred to Practice Standards 8:52-5.2., Management and
Leadership. Planning is one of the fundamental responsibilities of a licensed Health Officer, who
functions as a Chief Executive Officer of a local health agency. He said he thought these really needed to
be looked at, to make sure they are in compliance with the State statute. Mr. Caviness felt sure that the  
Attorney would say the job descriptions were probably taken verbatim and it is a template right from the
State Statutes, but one of the things he noted was “The Health Officer shall be the Registrar of Vital
Statistics for the City of Englewood.” He said they needed to be reviewed. 

Ms. Levien thanked Mr. Caviness for his input.

29. Date of Next Meeting - January 2008

Mr. Cruz stated that the next meeting would probably be held at the Municipal Court, because it
provides a better venue for individuals who haven’t been able to get here due to accessibility issues,
particularly for the senior citizens or individuals who are handicapped or challenged.  The Municipal
Court is available on Wednesdays, and the second Wednesday of the month would allow us an
opportunity to prepare the reports for the Board with enough time for them to be received and reviewed.
The second Wednesday of January is January 9. 

Ms. Levien asked if anyone was opposed to that date. There was no opposition.

Next meeting: January 9, 2008.

A Motion was made to open the Public Session by Dr. Skurnick, and seconded by Ms. Lachman.

Dr. Blanche Skurnick - “Yes” Dr. Earl Marsan - “Yes”
Jerald Chambers - “Yes” Dr. Lisa Wisotsky - (left early)
Curtis Caviness - “Yes” Dianna Lachman - “Yes”
Lisa Levien - “Yes”

Motion was carried.

PUBLIC SESSION

Ms. Levon Bowles



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 20 

Ms. Bowles stated that she was a massage therapist, and a member of the New Jersey Massage Therapy
Association and the American Massage Therapy Association. She has an application pending with the
Englewood Health Department now, with her partner, to open a wellness center, and was told to submit
a C.O. This morning, she received a phone call from Mr. Porrino, who told her that there was no such
thing as massage therapy in the City of Englewood. Then he went on to say that she needed a medical
certification. 

She said she has completed over 1,200 hours of training in massage therapy; works at the Griggs Health
Care Institute, volunteering as a massage therapist; maintained a 4.0 GPA in class, and graduated from
the American Academy of Massage Therapy in Hackensack. She was taken back when Mr. Porrino said
there was no massage therapy in Englewood, especially having seen several such businesses here. Since
being told she needs to get a medical certificate, with no explanation what that is, she asked the Board
for assistance.

Mr. Lustgarten stated that prior to this meeting, he had met with Mr. Cruz and Ms. Lewis, and Ms.
Bowles’ situation had come up in the conversation. Mr. Lustgarten said he was unaware of that
requirement, and he was also of the opinion that after all the evidence that the Board heard tonight, they
would start the process next month to repeal the ordinance. He said he was also cognizant that there is a 
State licensing process; it is listed in Title 45, Occupations, that massage therapy and its related
characteristics are a bona fide business entity in the State of New Jersey. 

Mr. Lustgarten said he could not speak for Mr. Porrino, but he believed that once the ordinance was
repealed, the only thing needed would be licensing from the State, and applicable zoning certificates.
Ms. Bowles asked if there was a license from the State.  Mr. Lustgarten said it was a certification. Ms.
Bowles said it was a voluntary certification, before the Senate, as of November 28, 2007, and that there
was no mandatory certification for a massage therapist in New Jersey. 

Dr. Skurnick said they might have to re-address the Ordinance. It was not the intent to prevent people
from starting businesses in Englewood, but they did want to assure that the public’s health would be well
served. A certification process, voluntary or not, may be a Board requirement to ensure that people have
been screened by an agency able to certify the knowledge and background necessary. Ms. Bowles said
she understood, but that the only thing a New Jersey certification does is insure one can carry the title of
massage therapist. If I were to do something wrong, then I would be stripped of my title of massage
therapist. I could never use that title again, but I could work as a massage practitioner because I am not
using that title. That is the only thing the State of New Jersey does with certification: it gives you claim
to the title.

Dr. Skurnick said they would review that, because the Board had wishes in terms of securing appropriate
skills and background knowledge. Ms. Bowles said she still did not have an answer. Dr. Skurnick said
they could not give her an answer at that moment. 

A general discussion followed on what the process should be for opening her business. Dr. Skurnick
stated it was brought to their attention, and that the Board would review the information and discuss the
issue.  Ms. Bowles said that they had sublet space for a psychotherapist and a social worker, which she 
shared office space with. She said their paperwork was pending, and the only thing holding it up was Mr.
Porrino denying a Certificate of Occupancy because he said a medical certificate was required. She said



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 21 

she wouldn’t be at the meeting if she had an answer as to what a medical certificate was, because all the 
regulations were followed.

Mr. Lustgarten asked Ms. Bowles if she had the certification pursuant to the State Statute.  Ms. Bowles
said she did not have a certification from the State. Mr. Lustgarten said the current Health Code
Ordinance, Subsection 9-4(a)4 says: Requirements for licensure or compliance for handler, one of them
has obtained the certification as provided in N.J.S.A. 45:11-53 from the State of New Jersey licensing
agency known as Massage, Bodywork and Somatic Therapy Examining Committee. He said that is
format application, so regardless of what was said by anyone else, as the ordinance is currently written,
that is one of the requirements for obtaining a C.O./license. Ms. Bowles asked if the State requirements
would supercede those of a municipality, since it does not require certification. Mr. Lustgarten said that
if the State has not pre-empted the field, then under the powers of the municipality, the City can
reasonably establish certain criteria. If this is a voluntary State program, that is not pre-emption. If it is
voluntary, it is not mandatory, and the City ordinance would be valid in requiring that certificate as long
as it is not completely arbitrary and capricious. To answer more precisely, that section of the City
Ordinance is valid, so without that certification, under the current status of the ordinance, Englewood’s
requirements have not been fulfilled. If this ordinance is repealed next year, no certification will be
required. 

Ms. Paula Madison Jenkins

Ms. Jenkins asked for legal clarification from the Attorney regarding whether employees of the
Department are governed by the City Policy and Personnel Procedures or by the Board’s policy and
regulations.

Mr. Lustgarten’s opinion was both. He said that the City policies cover all City employees, and the more
specific policies that have been enacted by the Board of Health, that do not contravene the City’s, would
apply also. Ms. Jenkins referred to the Director’s request for tuition reimbursement, and said this had
never been a policy of the Board for any employee. She asked if that was now open to all employees of
the Department. She also stated that she had received a notice regarding her leave of absence about the
City policy, and that the Health Department employees were governed by the policies and procedures of
the Board of Health, not the City’s policy. She asked for a legal clarification on that.

Mr. Lustgarten said he didn’t know who had given her that opinion. Ms. Jenkins stated she had a copy of
the letter from the Director, with a copy to the Board President. She asked again for clarification as to
which policy governed and who it applies to. Mr. Lustgarten answered that certain policies may be
strictly in the domain of the City and others strictly in the domain of the Board, and that one could not 
generalize that all policies are one or the other. 

Ms. Jenkins asked how to determine which policies benefit which people. She asked if she requested a
leave of absence, per the City’s policy/manual, which was denied, how could someone be approved
tuition reimbursement, which has never been the policy of the Department. Mr. Lustgarten replied that
she was mixing apples with oranges. On the leave of absence issue, he said he would first see if there is a
Board policy, and then look at the City policy, and see if they were the same or different. If there was a
difference, he said he would contact the City Manager, point out the difference, and ask if our ordinance
superceded the City policy. That would be a judgement for the City Manager.  On the tuition



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 22 

reimbursement, and the policy of the Board, Mr. Lustgarten did not know what past practice was, but if
the majority of this Board decided to implement tuition reimbursement, regardless of past practice, they
may. He said if the majority of this Board decides to change a policy, it has the authority to do so, which
was not a comment on whether it should or should not, but if something new is happening, that does not 
automatically make it incorrect. 

Ms. Jenkins commented that the policies of the Board are then subjective to the feelings of the Board.
Mr. Lustgarten said the policies of the Board are subject to the majority and consensus of the Board, and
do not violate ordinances or contracts or City policy. Ms. Jenkins asked if any employee who requested
tuition reimbursement would be considered a part of the policy, or would that be subject to the majority
of the Board.  

Ms. Jenkins continued her comments. She wanted it on the record that she was requesting a complete
package of her resignation, along with all the supporting documentation and attachments, be given to the
entire Board. She then said she would like a copy of any outgoing document from the office while she
was on official leave that had her name on it, such as this annual report. She said if anything went out
with her name on it, that was misrepresentation and fraud. Her last comment, to the Director, was that 
she was glad to see he was piggy-backing on her past programs, including the PEOSH Air Quality
Assessment, World AIDS Day, the Hepatitis B grant, etc., and couldn’t wait to see what he did with his
own ideas. Mr. Cruz answered he was only completing items that were pending.

Mr. Carter Jackson 

Mr. Jackson stated he was with the Bergen County branch of the NAACP. He said that he would like to
know the hiring practices of the Board of Health, and asked Ms. Levien if the Director did the hiring, or
did the Board approve all the hires. Ms. Levien requested an explanation of what he meant by hiring
practices.  Mr. Jackson first asked for clarification if the Board was an autonomous body from the City.
Ms. Levien answered in the affirmative. Mr. Jackson asked if that meant there was no connection with
the City whatsoever. Mr. Chambers said it was subject to the City budget. 

Mr. Jackson wanted to know if Mr. Cruz had all the authority for the hiring and firing in the Health
Department. Ms. Levien answered that when Mr. Cruz hires someone, he then brings it to the Board for
confirmation by resolution. Mr. Jackson said then there was no affirmative action, and any person that he
presents, if the majority of the Board is in favor, he will hire that person. He asked if that was correct. 

Mr. Lustgarten said it was subject to City policy, an affirmative action employer. He said his
understanding was that Mr. Cruz would recruit and interview applicants, and then make a
recommendation to the Board. In that process is included the affirmative action requirements of the State
and the City of Englewood. If Mr. Cruz wanted to hire someone outside the salary ordinance amounts
and approved titles, or exceeded the total budget of the Board, that would be beyond the authority of his
recommendation; otherwise the process of submitting the names in for the Board to act on is accurate. 

Mr. Jackson said the affirmative action policy is from the City of Englewood. Mr. Lustgarten said it was
in the Personnel manual and the Board’s own ordinance has incorporated the affirmative action
language. Mr. Jackson asked if Mr. Cruz had gone to Mr. Gorman, the Affirmative Action Officer in the
City, when hiring the health education teacher. Mr. Cruz clarified that it was the Youth Health Educator 



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 23 

just hired, and answered that he had not gone to Mr. Gorman. 

Mr. Jackson asked if it was solely Mr. Cruz’s decision to hire her, which was his point. Mr. Cruz said 
the process entailed collecting resumes from all who expressed an interest, and interviewing the best
candidates. He said affirmative action is observed, and that one of the preferences, if possible, is to get
candidates from Englewood. The candidate selected  reflects a person of color, someone who would
respond to the affirmative action policy in the City.  Mr. Caviness said that process also includes
Practice Standards, a State Statute, which was the reason he voted no, because that was not being
adhered to. 

Mr. Jackson’s next question to the Chair was whether the applications of those that were turned down
were public and available. Mr. Caviness thought that would be an OPRA request. Dr. Skurnick
questioned that, and said the applications were submitted to the Director, and whether they should be 
available for review by others was questionable because of a privacy issue.  Mr. Jackson thought that
was for public knowledge. Dr. Skurnick didn’t think resumes were, and that the applicants may have to
be informed that their resumes would become public. Mr. Jackson asked for only the names of the
applicants. Dr. Skurnick said she didn’t know if that was public. Mr. Lustgarten stated that the issue was
the balance between the public’s right to know about the process and the right of privacy of applicants.
Since some of the people may be currently employed and have not notified their employer, 
disseminating their information publicly could cause them to lose their job, but if Mr. Jackson wanted  a
profile about the people, he thought that was appropriate.  Mr. Jackson wanted to know how they were
interviewed. Mr. Lustgarten said he thought Mr. Jackson was entitled, as a matter of public disclosure, to
understand the process, and that Mr. Cruz could explain that. If he put an ad in the paper, personally
interviewed everyone, read the background material, what kinds of questions were asked, etc.  Mr.
Lustgarten also thought that if Mr. Cruz recalled gender, national origin or background of individuals, he
could say, three were Caucasian, three Black, three Asian, etc., and that would be the appropriate
balance of protecting their privacy and fully informing the public of the process that was used. Mr.
Lustgarten said he would agree with including their experience as long as their names were not
mentioned. Mr. Jackson said he just needed some verification that they were properly interviewed and
given an opportunity to apply for this job, and  that the young lady hired had the same opportunity. Mr.
Cruz assured him that the applicants represented every racial and ethnic group, and that there were
individuals he would have liked to hire, but some turned the job down as well. Mr. Jackson said all he
wanted to know was that the Health Department went about it the proper way. 

Mr. Jackson said finally that Englewood has gone crazy with itself. He said there is a very biased
atmosphere in this city, and what you need to do is recognize it, and politics should be eliminated from
this place completely. Mr. Jackson said he spoke to Mr. Cruz during his first week here, and he had told
him he was not going to be involved in any politics here, and he hoped that was so. 

Ms. Greene assured Mr. Jackson that the Department had received the hiring policy from Mr. Gorman’s
office, which indicated that ads should be posted in the papers, on the web page, etc. These have been
followed. Notices are also posted in the lobby at City Hall, so all those steps have been taken.

Mr. Chambers commented on the process. He said the Director can interview all the candidates and
make a subjective opinion, and it may be right or wrong, but there is room for error. If the Board gets the
recommendations at the last minute, and doesn’t see the other resumes, he felt the process was incorrect. 



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 24 

He would like the Board to see the resumes of the other candidates, because that is the Director’s
opinion that the person is the best candidate. Mr. Chambers said Mr. Cruz could hire all the Hispanics he
wanted, and they may be the best candidates, but it could be misinterpreted because of the process. He
said that he isn’t saying he is being racist, but that the process should be more open, and the Board
should have more say.

Ms. Jean Hopewell 
380 Liberty Rd., Englewood

Ms. Hopewell wanted to know if the public would receive copies of the 2006 Annual Report. Ms.
Levien said they would, when it was finalized. Ms. Hopewell noted that there were questions about the
Friends of the Health Department, and stated she was a member and had been for quite a while. She said 
they do support the health element of the Health Department, but not the atrocious manner of dealing
with Ms. Cherry. Ms. Hopewell said she attended most of the Board meetings, and didn’t hear that much
regarding health when the former Board was there. She said not much health was discussed in those
meetings; it was about convicting Ms. Cherry, hearings, and public money for hearings. She said she
attended Ms. Jenkins’ programs, and there were good ones, but there were World AIDS Days before
that. 

Ms. Hopewell felt the community was in dire need of health, with many children never having been to a
dentist, and no opportunity to do so. She said there used to be a dentist in each school, and asked what
happened to them. She also said the schools have been moved across town, away from this area where
most of the children live, and as far as she was concerned, it wasn’t healthy that they had to take a bus to
school every morning. She hoped the Board would concentrate on some of the health issues of the
children.

Mr. Chambers asked if the Friends of the Health Department were so big on advocating health issues,
why they didn’t champion these and other causes. Ms. Hopewell said she was bringing it up right now.
Mr. Caviness told her that he would raise these issues at the Board of Ed meeting the following evening.

Mr. Chambers asked Ms. Hopewell how many members of the Friends also are part of the Englewood
Democratic Committee. She said she had no idea, and that she was not. 

Dr. Richard Pierson

Dr. Pierson said his interest in the Englewood Health Department began in 1965. The Friends of the
Health Department was invented to help Violet Cherry, a dominant person in public health in
Englewood from 1973 until recently. The purpose of the Friends was to generate interest in public health
so that citizens in the community would rise up and say yes, we support that. Mrs. Cherry educated him
on public health and how it was relevant for the City. Dr. Pierson spoke about Englewood Hospital,
which serves 17 communities, and the fact that Englewood and Montclair were identified by the Ford
Foundation as diverse communities, using the concept “let’s get the community involved.” 

Dr. Pierson spoke about the Pediatric Obesity Project, which received the support of Brenda Grier, the
previous President of the Board of Health, and also of the present Board. He referred to a presentation he
and Dr. Suzie Jean-Louis made on November 30 at St. Luke’s Hospital in New York. He said childhood



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 25 

obesity is a world-wide problem, and offered to do a parallel presentation for anyone interested.
Substantial grant funding was anticipated for a project which would put Englewood on the map as a
place to demonstrate to a diverse community that this is an area that can do something about pediatric
obesity. He said their strengths were the Mt. Sinai School of Public Health, Columbia University School
of Public Health, St. Luke’s Hospital as the intellectual resources, but Englewood’s resources are more
important because it is a community where people care about each other. 

Dr. Pierson said, to a group of Friends, a year ago, that they had to be very thoughtful. Were they the
friends of Violet Cherry or the Friends of the Englewood Health Department? The answer was the
Friends of the Englewood Health Department. He said there is an appreciation for what Violet Cherry 
brought to this City, and yet there have been polarizations which are unfortunate, and if she had stuck to
health, and not gotten involved in politics, life would have been easier. However, this lady has the
capacity for anger, and the capacity for recognizing injustice, and the fundamental anger she had was
with the injustice of health not being divided equally to all the people. 

He said he cared about the city, and about the people sitting around the table who volunteer their time,
and looked forward to coming back in an apolitical arena. He said the hospitals and the schools are
important, but the Englewood Health Department is the key central operator for pulling us together. 

A Motion to close the Public Session was made by Dianna Lachman and seconded by Jerald Chambers. 

A roll call vote ensued:

Dr. Blanche Skurnick - “Yes” Dr. Earl Marsan - (left early)
Jerald Chambers - “Yes” Dr. Lisa Wisotsky - (left early)
Curtis Caviness - “Yes” Dianna Lachman - “Yes”
Lisa Levien - “Yes”

Motion was carried.

Ms. Levien thanked everyone for their service, and said that although they had butted heads in some
areas, she hoped everyone would continue to be interested.

Mr. Chambers said he would be resigning from the Board, as his term was up, and knew he would not be
re-appointed, but would like to comment on what Dr. Pierson said. He said he concurred with Dr.
Pierson, that there are many issues. He said contrary to what Dr. Pierson may think, he tries to look at
the broad picture, because he has sentiment about trying to correct things in our society. He thought
many issues had been perverted because of the issue of Ms. Cherry. Four people decided that the
evidence presented was egregious enough to take it to a further level. He said negative comments were
made to him when leaving the City Council Meeting when the issue was presented to them by one of the
members of the Democratic Municipal Committee and  comments by other members which bordered on
racism many times. He said Dr. Pierson was right; there was too much energy and emphasis placed on
the  battle with Ms. Cherry, but it got perverted because she got protected. It wasn’t about her
qualifications, but how employees were being misused, and for whatever reason, a Superior Court Judge 
prevented us from voting.  



BOH Regular Meeting - December 5, 2007 Page 26 

Mr. Chambers said he also wanted to return to normality, and not keep coming to meetings with anger
and animosity, but that much of it came about because of all the strong involvement from City Council
members, and many things happened to get us where we are. He said they got rid of the City Manager
because she did not “go along” and have removed many African Americans, without adhering to policies
or any sense of being fair and reasonable.  

Mr. Chambers said that for African Americans, it is not just obesity, but diabetes, and described friends
who suffer afflictions that African Americans, and people in the inner city, are affected by. He said there
was a need to return to health issues, but didn’t see the Friends presenting any ideas of what should be
done except Dr. Pierson’s obesity project, which could have been further advocated. He said if the group
really are Friends, then bring some issues to the Board, form some committees, so some of their
concerns could be pushed, but on the city level, it would have to be dealt with in a different way. He said
whatever is going to transpire with Ms. Cherry will, but at this point, we have to stop the political
posturing, and be more objective and fair. 

A Motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Dr. Blanche Skurnick and seconded by Dianna Lachman. 

All members voted “aye,” in favor. Motion was carried.

The meeting officially adjourned at 10:55 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Nelson Xavier Cruz
Secretary to the Board
/jk


	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26

